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LAGRAIZE, LLC 

J CPAs & CONSULTANTS 

/ND£PEND£NTAL/D/70RS' REPORT 

The Board of Commtssioners of the 
Port of South Louisiana 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Port of South Louisiana (Port) as 
of and for the years ended April 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the Port's basic financial statements as listed in the table 
of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the finandal position of the Port of South Louisiana as of April 30, 2022 and 2021, and the changes 
In financial position and Its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Bosj's for Opinions 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Port and to meet our 
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our 
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Monogement for the Finandai Statements 

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for 
the design, Implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Port's 
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, 
including any currently known Information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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/lu<fftors' ResporTsjt)i7fefe$ for the Audit of the Finandaf Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finanda! statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditors' report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance but 
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Aud/trng Stondards will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of Internal control. Misstatements are 
considered material if there Is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they 
would Influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Aud/tmg Standords, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
Such procedures Include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures In the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port's internal control. Accordingly, no 
such opinion Is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, In our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered In the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Port's ability to continue as a goipg 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain Internal 
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 

Requ/red Supp/ementory /nformotron 

Accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis and required supplementary Information on pages 4 through 
6 and pages 34 through 36 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
Information Is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers It to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 



operation^, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our Inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during 
our audit of the basic frnanclal statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on the Information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Siipp/ementary fnformotion 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Port of South Louisiana's basic financial statements. The accompanying 
Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The 
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Adm/n/strot/ve Requ/rements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, is also presented for purposes of additional analysis and Is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. 

The schedules referred to in the preceding paragraph are the responsibility of management and 
were derived from and reiate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
Inciuding comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted In the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedules are fairly stated In all 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reportrng Requ/red by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Stondords, we have also issued our report dated October 
11, 2022, on our consideration of the Port of South Louisiana's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts 
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report Is to describe the scope of 
our testing of Internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port's Internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Stondords in considering the Port's internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

Metairle, Louisiana 
October 11, 2022 



PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
MANAGEMENTS DfSCUSSfON AND ANALYSIS 

April 30. 2022 

This section of the Port of South Louisiana's (the Port) financial report presents a discussion and 
analysis of the Port's financial performance during the fiscal year that ended April 30, 2022. Please 
read it tn conjunction with the Port's financial statements, which follows this section. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The Port's net position (assets fully owned with no restrictions) of approximately $173.8 mililon 
represents approximately 89% of total assets of approximately $196.3 million in 2022. In 2021, 
the Port's net position of approximately $153.6 million approximated 87% of total assets of 
approximately $ 177.1 mililon. 

The Port had an increase in net position of approximately $20.2 million for the year ended April 
30, 2022 and an Increase in net position of approximately $19.2 million in 2021. 

In addition, the Port's cash provided from operating activities was $6,846,756 in 2022 as compared 
to $3,542,085 in 2021. 

On August 29, 2021, Hurricane Ida made landfall and caused unprecedented devastation to 
Southeast Louisiana. The Port sustained significant damage which resulted in a net Impairment 
gain, after Insurance recoveries, of $7,284,225. See NOTE 3 for further explanation. 

OVERWEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This financial report consists of three parts: management's discussion and analysis (this section), 
the basic ffnanclal statements, and the notes to the financial statements. 

The financial statements provide both long-term and short-term Information about the Port's 
overall financial status. The financial statements ^so Include notes that explain some of the 
information in the financial statements and provide more detailed data. 

The Port's financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis in conformity with accounting 
principles generaJly accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental 
units. Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are 
earned, expenses are recognized in the period In which they are incurred, and depreciation of 
assets is recognized in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. All 
assets and liabilities associated with the operations of the Port are Included In the Statements of 
Net Position. 

The Statements of Net Position report the Port's net position, which is the difference between Its 
assets and liabilities. Net Position is one way to measure the Port's financial health or position. 



PORT OF SOUTH LOUlSfANA 
MANAGEMENT'S D/SCUSSfON AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED 

Apr//30. 2022 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE PORT 

Net Position 

The Port's total assets at April 30, 2022 reached approximately $196.3 million, A change In the 
composition of assets is primarily due to the increase in cash and property and equipment held as of 
April 30, 2022. 

Table A^ I 
PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 

Statements of Net Position 

Percent 
Variance 

April 30, 2022 and 202! 

2022 2021 Variance 
ASSETS 

Current assets $ 39,075,966 $ 28,991.222 $ 10.084,744 
Restricted assets 8,590 7.697 893 
Property and equipment, net 157.239.985 148,066,965 9.173,020 
Other assets 654 . 654 

Total Assets 196.325,195 177.065.884 19,259,311 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 1.493.485 2.364.002 f870.5l71 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED 
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 197.818.680 S 179.439.886 $ 18.388.794 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 
Revenue bonds payable 
from restricted assets 

Other noncurrent liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED 
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES. 
AND NET POSITION 

35 % 
12 % 
6 % 

100 % 

M % 

(37) % 

10 % 

$ 5,105,519 $ 4,238,616 $ ; 866,903 20 % 

2,462.000 
14.046.887 

3,068,000 
16,914.934 

(606.000) 
a,868.047^ 

(20) % 
(17)% 

21,614,406 24,221,550 (2,607.144) (ll)% 

2,438,408 1,627,541 810,867 50 % 

153,995.238 
8,590 

19.762,038 

144,238,224 
7,697 

9.334,874 

9.757,014 
893 

10.427,164 

7 % 
(2 % 

112 % 

173.765,866 153.580.795 20.185.071 13 % 

S 197.818.680 S 179.429.886 S 18.388.794 10 % 



PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
MANAGEMENT'S D/SCUSStON AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED 

April 30, 2022 

Total liabilities decreased by approximately $2.6 million. The decrease in liabilities is mainly a result 
of a decrease in other noncurrent payables related to other post-employment benefits payable. 

Net position increased by approximately $20,2 million as explained in the following section. Net 
position Invested In capital assets reflect fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation, net of debt 
balance for capital teases. Restricted assets reflect assets restricted by a donor and/or contractual 
agreements for specific purposes, 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

The Increase in net position for the year ended April 30, 2022 was approximately $20.2 million as 
compared to an increase in net position of approximately $ 19.2 million for the year ended April 
30, 2021. The current year increase resulted primarily from capital contributions of approximately 
$16.8 million for the construction of the administration building, Dow project and dock 
improvements, combined with a gain on impairment of assets of approximately $7.3 million, then 
offset by a loss on disposition of assets of approximately $3.8 million and non-operating hurricane 
repair of approximately $L5 million. The pension and OPEB expenses were reduced due to the 
change in assumptions and actual vs. estimated return on investments. Operating expenses include 
approximately $4,5 million of depreciation expense. The changes in net position are detailed in 
Table A-2, 



PORT OF SOUTH LOUfSMNA 
MANAGEMENT'S DtSCUSSfON AND ANALYSfS ~ CONTINUED 

April 30. 2022 

Table A-2 
PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
April 30,2022 and 2021 

Percent 
2022 2021 Variance Variance 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Dockage, net $ 3,374,823 $ 2,775,869 $ 598,954 22 % 
Harbor fees, anchorage and 
barge fleeting 4.934.867 5,008,044 (73.177) (l)% 

Wharfage 1,165,432 1,165,432 - 0 % 
Foreign trade zone income 197,000 197,000 - 0 % 
Rentals 6.847,779 5.878,433 969,346 16 % 
Sheddage other 875.192 697.282 177.910 26 % 

Toted Operating Revenues 17,395,093 15.722,060 [,673.033 II % 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salaries and employee benefits 4,944,880 5,280,198 (335.318) (6)% 
Depreciation 4,416,528 3.889,204 572,324 15 % 
Insurance 1,411,192 1,030,539 380,653 37 % 
Maintenance and repairs 1,553,861 1,263,297 245,564 19 % 
Port planning and development 257,676 260,603 (2.927) (!)% 
Administrative and other 3,105,030 2.7J2.722 392.308 14 % 

Total Operating Expenses 15.689.167 14.436.563 1.252.604 9 % 

Operating Income 1.705,926 L2BS,497 420,429 33 % 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES 
(EXPENSES) L673.307 f 124.807^ 1.798.114 144 % 

NET INCOME BEFORE 
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 3,379,233 1,160,690 2,218,543 19! % 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 16,805.838 18.024.864 f 1.219.026^ (7)% 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 20,185,071 19,185,554 999.517 5 % 

NET POSmON, BEGINNING 
OF YEAR 153.580.795 134.395,241 [9.185,554 14 % 

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR S 173.765.866 S 153.580.795 J 20.185.071 13 % 



PORT OF SOUTH LOU/SIANA 
MANACEMENT'S DtSCUSSfON AND ANALYS/S - C0N7/NUED 

April 30. 2022 

Operating revenues increased by 11% to approximately $17.4 million in fiscal year 2022. This is 
primarily due to an increase in dockage and rental revenues. 

Operating expenses increased by 9% to approximately $15,7 million in fiscal year 2022. The 
increase in expenses is mainly related to the increase in depreciation expense, insurance expense 
and maintenance & repairs expense. Salaries and employee benefits experienced a 6% decrease. 
This decrease is mainly due to a decrease in employee retirement benefit and OPES expenses as 
a result of changes In actuarial assumptions and actual performance of investments within LASERS 
and the Office of Group Benefits, respectively, as compared to 2021. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Cop/to/ Asset Admin/strot/on 

The Port's investment in capital assets approximated $157.2 million, net of accumulated 
depreciation. This investment consists princlpafly of land, buildings and docks, equipment, and 
vehicles. The Port currently has several ongoing construction projects. 

Debt Adm/nistrotion 

The Port's debt consists of revenue bonds payable relating to financing the acquisition, construction 
and other expenses related to the extension of the general cargo dock at the Globalpiex facility, 

CONTACTING THE PORT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our patrons and other Interested parties with a general 
overview of the Port's finances sind to demonstrate the Port's accountability for the money it 
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact 
the Port of South Louisiana at (985) 652-9278, 



PORT OF SOUTH LOUISfANA 
STATEMENTS OF NET POStTJON 

April 30. 2022 and 2021 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Certificates of deposit 
Investments 
Accrued interest receivable 
Accounts receivable, net of $2,544 and $2,544 

allowance for doubtful accounts 
Prepaid expenses and other 

2022 

$ 31.050,915 
507,908 

6,160,075 
318 

1,349,409 
7.341 

2021 

$ 19,915,246 
507,908 

6,155,193 
55 

2,307,908 
104.912 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 39,075,966 28.991,222 

RESTRICTED ASSETS 
Cash 
Accrued interest receivable 

893 
7,697 7.697 

TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS 8,590 7,697 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET 157,239,985 148,066,965 

OTHER ASSETS 654 -

TOTAL ASSETS 196,325,195 177,065,884 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Difference between expected and actual experience 
related to OPEB plan 

Changes in assumptions related to OPEB calculation 
Contributions subsequent to measurement 
date to the pension plan 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments 

Changes in assumptions related to pension calculation 

5f,9S0 
448,975 

836,723 

6,040 
149797 

70,504 
28,809 

831,932 

1,402,068 
30.689 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1.493,485 2.364.002 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED 
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 197.818.680 S 179.429.886 

See Notes to Rnanda^ Statements. 



PORT Of SOUTH LOUISIANA 
STATEMENTS OE NET POS/T/ON - Cont/nued 

April 30. 2022 and 2021 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Payable from current assets: 

Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries and vacation 
Retainage payable 
Unearned rent, deposits and other liabilitres 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES PAYABLE 
FROM CURRENT ASSETS 

Pay:6le from restricted assets: 
Current portion of revenue bonds payable 

from restricted assets 
Accrued interest payable 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES PAYABLE 
FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 
Revenue bonds payable from restricted assets 
Pension payable 
OPES payiie 

TOTAL NONCURRENT UABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Changes in assumptions related to OPEB calculation 
Difference between expected and actual experience 

related to OPEB plan 
Difference between expected and actual experience 

related to pension plan 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

TOTAL LIABILITIES. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 

2022 2021 

$ 2.820,325 $ 1,942,214 
450,457 473,019 
782,198 792,850 
269.792 269.792 

4.322.772 3,477.875 

755.000 728,000 
27.747 32.741 

782.747 760,741 

5,105,519 4,238,616 

2,462,000 3,068,000 
6.115,633 9,591,328 
7.931.254 7.323.606 

16.508,887 19.982.934 

21,614,406 24,221,550 

522.744 938.158 

489,475 92,112 

1.426.189 597.271 

2,438.408 1.627.541 

24,052,814 25,849,091 

153,995,238 144.238,224 
8,590 7,697 

19.762.038 9.334.874 

173.765,866 153.580.795 

4 197.818.680 $ 179.429.886 

fO 



PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 

^ND CHANGES /N NET POS/T(ON 
Years Ended April 30, 2022 and 202 / 

2022 2021 
OPERATING REVENUES 

Dockage, net 
Harbor fees, anchorage and barge fleeting income 
Foreign trade zone Income 
Rentals 
Miscellaneous 
Globalplex revenues: 

Dockage 
Wharfage 
Rentals 
Sheddage and other 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 

1,748,870 
4,934,867 

197,000 
5,306,869 

395,235 

1,625,953 
1,165,432 
1,540,910 

479.957 

17,395,093 

$ 1,281,340 
5.008,044 

197,000 
4,288,136 

23 i,400 

1,494,529 
1,165,432 
1,590,297 

465.882 

15,722,060 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Administration 27,000 26,878 
Auditing 73,635 60,866 
Bank fees 35 969 
Building services 66,594 66.279 
Computer software 38,980 30,482 
Commission meetings 32,177 38,974 
Conventions 08,609 7,459 
Delivery charges 1,089 922 
Depreciation 4,416,528 3,889,204 
Dues 60,330 57,679 
Employee benefits 1,072,318 1,397,799 
Engineering fees 161,774 88,777 
Equipment rentals 28,842 29,451 
Fuel 194,631 127,470 
Insurance 1,41 1,192 1,030,539 
Legal fees 673,401 379,777 
Maintenance and repairs 1,553.861 1,263.297 
Management services - Globalplex 18,805 19.390 
Medical expense 2,842 1,090 
Mileage 2.125 1,410 
Permits and license fees 20,223 28,290 
Port planning and development 257,676 260,603 

See Notes to Financial Statements. It 



PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES. EXPENSES 

AND CHANGES IN NET P0S/7/0N - Continued 
Years Ended April 30, 2022 and 2021 

2022 202 
OPERATING EXPENSES (Continued) 

Postage 
Printing 
Professional fees 
Publishing 
Salaries 
Security 
Subscriptions 
Supplies 
Telephone 
Training 
Uniforms 
Utilities 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

OPERATING INCOME 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest earned on investments 
Interest expense - Globalplex 
Gain on insurance recoveries, net of impairment of assets 
Loss on disposition of assets 
Hurricane expenses 
Misappropriation, net of insurance recoveries 
Return of excess funds 

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 

NET INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 

Capital Contributions 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITION 

BEGINNING OF YEAR 

END OF YEAR 

384 
3,331 

751,808 
3,324 

3,869,720 
231,336 

7,676 
68,145 
87,200 
3,000 

22,256 
438.320 

15.689.167 

1,705,926 

12,809 
(121,035) 
7,284,225 

(3,816,027) 
(1.516.346) 
(170,319) 

1.673.307 

3,379,233 

16,805.838 

20,185,071 

677 
2,258 

886,619 
3,521 

3,881,309 
257,368 
6,258 

59,849 
88,377 
2,320 

22,237 
418.165 

14,436.563 

1,285,497 

33,011 
(140,684) 

(17.134) 

(124.807) 

1,160,690 

18.024.864 

19.185,554 

153.580.795 134.395.24! 

£ 173.765.866 £153.580.795 

See Notes to Finandoi Stotements. 12 



PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Years Ended April 30, 2022 and 2021 

2022 202 * 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Receipts from customers and users $ 18,353,592 $ 16,084,176 
Receipts from other sources - 654 
Payments to other sources (654) (415,432) 
Payments to suppliers (5,352,077) (6,020,510) 
Payments to employees and related benefits ^6.154.105^ (6.106,803) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 6,846,756 3,542,085 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Insurance proceeds - noncapital 250,000 -
Payments for noncapital disaster recovery expenses n.516.346^ -

NET CASH USED IN NONCAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (1.266,346) -

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Payments on grant anticipation notes and revenue 

bonds payable (579,000) (561,000) 
Interest paid (126,029) (145,522) 
Proceeds from contributed capital 16,805,838 18,024,864 
Net of acquisitions, dispositions and transfers 
of fixed assets and construction in progress (21,791.669) (20,6 (8,593) 

Return of excess funds - (17,134) 
Increase (decrease) in grants receivable - 166,320 
Insurance proceeds - capital 11,250,000 -
Retainage payable f 10.652) 308.573 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) CAPITAL 
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 5,548,488 (2.842,492) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Net change in investments (4,882) 2,987,892 
Investment income received 12.546 33,933 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 7.664 3.021.825 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 11,136,562 3,721,418 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR [9.915.246 16.193.828 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. END OF YEAR $ 31.051.808 $ 19.915.246 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 13 



PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - Continued 

Years Ended April 30. 2022 and 2021 

2022 2021 
Cash and cash equivalents Include: 

Cash and cash equivalents $31,050,915 $ 19,915,246 
Restricted assets: 

Restricted cash 893 -

TOTAL AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $31,051,808 $ 19.915,246 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTlVfTlES: 
Operating Income $ 1,705,926 $ 1,285,497 
Adjustments to reconcile Income from operations 

to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 4,416,528 3,889,204 

Changes In assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and 
deferred Inflows: 

Accounts receivable 958.499 362,116 
Prepaid expenses and other 97,571 (15,658) 
Other assets (654) 654 
Deferred outflows of resources 870,517 (1,061,441) 
Accounts payable 878,111 (737,691) 
Accrued expenses (22.562) 15,884 
Unearned rent, deposits and other liabilities - (415,432) 
OPEB payable 607,648 407,604 
Pension liability (3,475,695) 41 1.950 
Deferred inflows of resources 810.867 f600.602) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 6.846.756 $ 3.542.085 

See Notes to Financial Statements 14 



PORT OF SOUTH LOUfSIANA 
NOTES TO F/NANOAL STATEMENTS 

April 30,2022 and 2021 

NOTE 1 - ORGANiZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Port of South Louisiana (the "Port") Is an Independent political subdivision of the State of 
Louisiana, which Is authorized by Louisiana Revised Statutes 34:2471. The Port is governed by a 
Board of Commissioners (the "Board") consisting of nine members appointed for a four-year term 
as follows: 

• The parish presidents, with concurrence of 2/3 of the members of the respective parish 
councils of each of the parishes of St, Charles, St. James and St. John the Baptist, appoint one 
resident commissioner each. 

• Six resident members (two from each parish) or chief executive officers of a business which is 
principally operated within each parish are appointed by the Governor of the State of Louisiana, 

The Board has ail the powers and privileges granted to it by the constitution and statutes of the 
State of Louisiana including, but not limited to, the authority to incur debt, to Issue bonds, to 
construct and maintain wharves and landings, and to charge fees for the use of the wharves and 
other facilities administered by the Port. 

The Port prepares its financial statements in accordance with standards issued by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The Port is reported as a stand-alone entity 
as defined by GASB Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB Statement No. 61, "The Financial 
Reporting Entity." The Port is neither fiscally dependent on any other local government, nor does 
it provide specific financicd benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on any other 
government. No other potential component units meet the criteria for inclusion in the financial 
statements of the Port, 

Basis of Presentot/on - fund Accountrng 

The Port's operations are accounted for In a proprietary fund type - the enterprise fund. The 
proprietary fund type is accounted for using the flow of economic resources measurement focus. 
With this measurement focus all assets and liabilities associated with the operations are Included 
on the statement of net position. Fund equity is segregated into contributed capital and net 
position. The operating statement presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net 
total position. 

The Port's operations are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business 
enterprises. The intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) 
of providing services on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user 
charges. The measurement focus emphasizes the determination of net income. 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ^ Continued 

April 30, 2012 and 202/ 

NOTE I - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued) 

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting Ccontinuedj 

The Port follows the accrual basis of accounting for its proprietary fund. Under this nmethod, revenues 
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. 

New Pronouncements 

During the year ended April 30, 2022, the Port adopted GASB Statement No. 89 - "Accounting for 
Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period", The implementation of the standard 
did not have an affect the Port's finandals statements or disclosures. 

The Port is In the process of analyzing GASB Statement No. 87 - "Leases," which requires recognition 
of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that are currently classified as operating leases. The Port 
is reviewing the effect, If any, the statement will have on rts financial statements for the next fiscal year. 

The Port is in the process of analyzing GASB Statement No. 91 - "Conduit Debt Obligations," which 
aims to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obJIgatlons by Issuers. The Port Is reviewing 
the effect, If any, the statement will have on its financial statements for the next fiscal year. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted rn 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

fnvestments and Restricted Assets 

Restricted and unrestricted investments of the Port, substantially all of which have original maturities 
of one year or less, are recorded at fair value. Fair value is based on quoted market prices. Restricted 
assets are deposits received and/or made by the Port prior to payment due to the bondholders on the 
revenue bonds and grant anticipation notes payables. 

fntangibfe Assets 

Intangible assets include easements, computer software, patents, copyrights, trademarks and goodwill. 
The Port does not currently have any reportable intangible assets that meet the capitalization threshold 
for intangible assets since the implementation of GASB Statement No. 51 "Accounting and Reporting for 
Intangible Assets" 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUtSlANA 
NOTES TO FfNANCAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

April 30, 2022 and 2021 

NOTE I - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued) 

Property and Equipment 

Property constructed or acquired by purchase is stated at cost. Donated property is stated at the 
estimated fair value on the date received. Depreciation is computed using the straight-Jine method 
over the foliowing estimated useful lives. 

Docks, barges and other facilities 5-50 years 
Boats 10 - 30 years 
Equipment and furniture 3-40 years 
Buildings 7-40 years 

The Port's policy is to capitalize construction period interest, if any. For fixed assets purchased with 
externally restricted debt, capitalized ir^terest is the difference between interest expense and 
interest earnings on invested proceeds of the debt. The capitalization period begins with the date 
of borrowing. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expenses when incurred. 

Long-Term Obiigot/ons 

Long-term obligations include revenue bonds used to provide capital for construction projects in 
the three-parish area. 

Contributed Capitai and Net Positron 

Contributed capital includes various grants from the State of Louisiana as well as other state and 
federal departments. Net position represents the amount of accumulated earnings related since 
the beginning of operations. 

Non-Operating income ond Expenses 

Non-operating Income and expenses are items that are not derived from normal port activities 
such as gain or loss on impairment of assets related to damages caused by hurricanes, gain or loss 
on disposition of assets, misappropriation, net of Insurance recoveries, or interest income or 
expense. 

Compensated Absences 

Employees of the Port are covered by the State of Louisiana civil service regulations and, as such, 
accumulate sick and annual leave in accordance with varying rates stipulated under these 
regulations. Upon termination and/or retirement, unused vacation not to exceed 300 hours is paid 
to the employee at the employee's current rate of pay. At retirement, unused vacation in excess 
of 300 hours and unused sick leave is considered in computing the years of service for retirement 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FfNANOAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

April 30, 2022 and 2021 

NOTE I - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SlGNIFfCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued) 

Compensated Absences (continued) 

benefit purposes. The Port's liabilities for sick Jeave of $J ,697,617 and $1,835,284 as of Aprit 30, 
2022 and 2021, respectively, have not been accrued because the employees are not entitled to it 
upon termination. 

Stotements of Cosb Flows 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits 
with banks and money market mutual funds. 

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash and Casb Equivalents 

At April 30, 2022, the book balance of the Port's total cash and certificates of deposit, including 
unrestriaed deposits totaled $31,559,716; the bank balance totaled $31,615,672. Of the bank 
balance, $950,000 was covered by federal deposit Insurance, $30,662,320 was covered by 
coNateral held by the bank's agent and pledged In the Port's name, and $3,352 was unsecured 
money market deposits. 

At April 30, 2021, the book balance of the Port's total cash and certificates of deposit, Including 
unrestricted deposits totaled $20,423,154; the bank balance totaled $20,622,224. Of the bank 
bsilance, $950,003 was covered by federal deposit insurance, $19,668,869 was covered by 
collateral held by the bank's agent and pledged In the Port's name, and $3,352 was unsecured 
money market deposits. 

April 30. 2022: 
Certificates 

Cash of Deposit Total 
Covered by federal depository insurance $ 500,000 $ 450,000 $ 950,000 

Collateralized with securities held by the 
pledging institution's trust department or 
agent, in the Port's name 30,604,412 57,908 30,662,320 

Uncollateralized, including securities held 
by the pledging institution or its agent but 
not In the Port's name 3.352 ; 3,352 

Total bank balance $31.107.764 $ 507.908 $31.615.672 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO F/NANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

April 30, 2022 and 2021 

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Cash and Cash Equivafents (continued) 

April 30. 2021: 
Certificates 

Cash of Deposit Total 
Covered by federal depository insurance $ 500,003 $ 450,000 $ 950,003 

Collateralized with securities held by the 
pledging Institution's trust department or 
agent, in the Port's name 19,610,961 57,908 19,668,869 

Uncollateralized, Including securities held 
by the pledging institution or its agent but 
not in the Port's name 3,352 ^ 3.352 

Total bank balance $20.114.316 $ 507.908 S 20.622.224 

The following is a breakdown by banking institution and amount of the balances shown above: 

2022 2021 
Banking Institution Amount Amount 

1. Regions Bank $25,999,291 $ 15,010.920 
2. Edward Jones 3,352 3,352 
3. Community Bank 200,000 200,000 
4. First National Bank, USA 4,367,817 4,365,793 
5. Investar Bank 1,045,212 1.042,156 
6. Iberia Bank i 3 

Total bank balance-all deposits $ 3l.6f5.672 $ 20.622.224 

Of the total bank balance at April 30, 2022, approximately $8.4 million is being held for future 
repairs due to damages caused by Hurricane Ida. See NOTE 3 for more Information. 

Custodia/ Credft Risk - Deposits 

In the case of deposits, there is a risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Port's deposits may not 
be returned to it. As of April 30, 2022, and 2021, $3,352 and $3,352, respectively, of the Port's 
bank balances of $31,615,672 and $20,622,224 were exposed to custodial credit risk because they 
were uninsured and uncollateralized. 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

April 30, 2022 and 2021 

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Investments 

The Port may invest idle funds as authorized by Louisiana Statutes, as fotlows: 

a. United States bonds, treasury notes^ certificates, or any ether federally insured Investment. 

b. Time certificates of deposit of state banks organized under the laws of Louisiana and 
national banks having their principal office In the State of Louisiana. 

c. Mutual or trust funds, which are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
undertheSecurities Act of 1933 and the Investment Act of 1940 and which have underlying 
investments consisting solely of and limited to securities of the United States government 
or lis agencies. 

Custodial Credft Risk - Investments 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that In the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, 
the Port will not be able to recover the value of Its Investments or collateral securities that are in 
the possession of an outside party. The Port's investment policy requires that all repurchase 
agreement investments be fully collateralized and held by the counterparty's trust department or 
agent In the Port's name. 

Investments in external investment pools, mutual funds, and other pooled Investments are not 
exposed to custodial credit risk because of their natural diversification and the diversification 
required by the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Port did not hold any investments that 
were exposed to custodial credit risk (not registered in the entity's name) in 2022 or 2021. 

All Investments are carried at Fair Value. 

2022 2021 
Unrestricted investments: 

Louisiana Asset Management Pool, Inc. $ 6,160,075 $ 6J55J93 

a 6J 60.075 a 6,155.193 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

AprilSO, 2022 and202/ 

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Credit Risk - Investments (continued) 

Investments held at April 30, 2022 and 202! include $6,160,075 and $6,155,193, respectively, in 
the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP), a local government investment pool, In accordance 
with GASB Codification Section 150.126, the investment in LAMP at April 30, 2022 and 2021 is not 
categorized in the three risk categories provided by GASB Codification Section 150.125 because 
the investment Is In the pool of funds and therefore not evidenced by securities that exist in physical 
or book entry form. 

LAMP Is administered by LAMP, Inc., a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the 
State of Louisiana. Only local government entities having contracted to participate in LAMP have 
an investment interest in its pool of assets. The primary objective of LAMP is to provide a safe 
environment for the placement of public funds In short-term, high-quality Investments. The LAMP 
portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which local governments in Louisiana are 
authorized to Invest In accordance with LSA-R.S. 33:2955. Accordingly, LAMP investments are 
restricted to securities issued, guaranteed, or backed by the U.S. Treasury, the U.S. Government, 
or one of Its agencies, enterprises, or instrumentalities, as well as repurchase agreements 
collateralized by those securities. 

Effective August 1, 2001, LAMP'S investment guidelines were amended to permit the investment 
in government-only money market funds. In its 2001 Regular Session, the Louisiana Legislature 
(Senate Bill No. 512, Act 701) enacted LSA-R.S. 33:2955(A)(l)(h) which allows ^1 municfpalities, 
parishes, school boards, and any other political subdivisions of the State to invest in "Investment 
grade (A-1 /P-1) commercial paper of domestic United States corporations." Effective October I, 
2001, LAMP'S Investment Guidelines were amended to allow the limited Investment in A-1 or A-
I + commercial paper. 

The weighted average maturity method of LAMP assets is restricted to not more than 90 days, and 
consists of no securities with a maturity In excess of 397 days or 762 days for U.S. Government 
floating/variable rate investments. LAMP Is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants 
Immediate access to their account balances. The investments in LAMP are stated at fair value. The 
far value is determined on a weekly basis by LAMP and the value of the position in the external 
investment pool is the same as the net asset value of the pool shares. LAMP is rated AAAm by 
Standard & Poor's. 

LAMP, Inc. is subject to the regulatoiy oversight of the State Treasurer and the Board of Directors. 
LAMP is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. Audited financial statements for 
LAMP can be found at vvww.lamppooJ.com. 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO F/NANOAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

April 30. 2022 and 202 J 

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

/nterest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that changes In interest rates will adversely affect the fair 

value of Investments. The Port's investment policy limits Interest rate risk by generally limiting 
maturities of its investments to shorter term securities, money market mutual funds, or similar 
investment pools as well as structuring the investment portfolio so that securities meet cash 
requirements for ongoing operations. 

Credft Risk and Concentration of Credit Risk 

The credit risk of Investments is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty will not meet Its 
obligations. This credit risk is measured by credit quality ratings as described by ratings agencies 
such as Standard & Poor's (S&P) and Moody's. The concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss 
that may occur due to the amount of investments In a single Issuer (not Including investments Issued 
orgu^anteed by the U.S. government, investments in mutual funds, or external investment pools). 
The Port's Investment policy does not place a limit on the amount the Port may invest In any one 
issuer. At April 30, 2022 and 2021, the Port did not have any Investment exposure to credit risk. 

NOTE 3 - PROPERPr AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consist of the following at April 30: 

2022 

05/01/21 Additions Deletions 04/30/22 

Land $ 30,136,628 $ $ $ 30,136,628 
Building, docks and equipment 11,586,964 13,409,263 (21,762) 24,974,465 
Globalplex buildings, docks and 
equipment i 15,369.302 18,252,207 (8,492,177) 125,129,332 

Airport infrastructure and 
equipment 14,059.814 226,014 (73,828) 14,212,000 

Construction In progress 32.693.018 20.156.539 f31.531.437) 21.318.120 
Total property and equipment 203,845,726 52.044,023 (40.119,204) 215.770,545 

Less accumulated depreciation f5S.77S,76l> f4.416,528) i.664.729 f58.530.560) 

Property and equipment, net Si 48.066.965 S47.627.49S $ f38.454.475) Sr57.239.9B5 

Of the $20,156,539 of 2022 construction In progress additions, $12,752,908 was funded through the State 
of Louisiana Facility Planning & Control and Port Priority programs. 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUISfANA 
NOTES TO FtNANOAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

April 30. 2022 and 202 J 

NOTE 3 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 

202! 

05/01/20 Additions Deletions 04/30/21 

Land $ 30,141,628 $ $ (5,000) $ 30,136,628 
Building, docks and equipment 11,899,532 30,458 (343,026) 11,586,964 
Globalplex buildings, docks and 
equipment 115,315,378 472,355 (418.431) II 5,369,302 

Airport infrastructure and 
equipment 11,527.587 2.534,927 (2.700) 14,059.814 

Construction in progress 15.136.704 20.568.609 f3.0l2.295> 32.693.018 
Total property and equipment 184.020,829 23.606.349 (3.781.452) 203,845,726 

Less accumulated depreciation /52,683.253^ f3.889.2041 793.696 f55.778.76 n 

Property and equipment, net $131,337,576 $19,717,145 $ f2.987.756^ $148,066,965 

Of the $20,568,609 of 2021 construction in progress additions, $ 15,609,560 WM funded through the State 
of Louisiana Facility Planning & Control and Port Priority programs. 

Impairment of Property and Equipment 

On August 29, 202 U Hurricane Ida made landfall and caused unprecedented devastation to 
Southeast Louisiana. Many Port properties sustained damage ranging from minimal damage to total 
loss of the structure. A majority of these properties were fully depreciated and no longer had any 
value on the Statement of Net Position. In accordance with GASB Codification Section 1400, the 
Port reviewed the properties damaged to identify potential impairments caused by Hurricane Ida 
smd further tested for impairment. The Impairment loss is calculated using the Restoration Cost 
Approach and is presented as a reduction in the value of capital assets on the Statement of Net 
Position. The loss is netted as a non-operating item on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Fund Net Position with Insurance proceeds, which resulted in an Impairment gain for 
2022 in the amount of $7,284,225. The remaining carrying value for those assets for which the gain 
was incurred was $51,686,165, of which one building with a net book value of $0 remained idle as 
of April 30. 2022. 

NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

Long-term debt consists of the following at April 30: 
2022 202 

Bonded debt - revenue bonds 

Less current portion 

Total long-term portion 

$ 3,217,000 

f755.000) 

£ 2.462.000 

$ 3,796.000 

f728.000^ 

$ 3.068.000 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FtNANQAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

April 30, 2022 and 202 i 

NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

During the year ended April 30, 2011, the Port issued revenue bonds in the amount of $8,000,000 
for the purpose of financing a portion of the acquisition, construaion, equipping and installation of 
an extension of the general cargo dock at the Globalpfex facility. The bonds are payable in semi­
annual installments of principal and interest of $138,000 to $352,986 through February I, 2027. 
The interest rate on the bonds is 3.45%. As of April 30, 2022, and 2021, the remaining principal 
balance of the bonds was $3,217,000 and $3,796,000, respeaively. 

Debt service requirements, including Interest of $ 136,220, for outstanding revenue bonds payable 
were as follows as of April 30, 2022. 

Revenue 
Bonds 

April 30. Payable 
2023 $ 706.662 
2024 705,583 
2025 705,805 
2026 705,750 
2027 529.420 

S 3.353.220 

NOTE 5 - DOCKAGE AND HARBOR FEES 

Dockage fee revenues are not dedicated to provide specific services, but are available to fund the 
operations of the Port. Harbor fees are dedicated to the providing of services to the vessels which 
use the Port and to the facilities located therein in the interest of public welfare and safety. Such 
funds may be appropriated by the Port for such purposes as to assist in defraying the administration 
and maintenance of the Port, including the supervision of the shipping of the Port, with the view of 
preventing collision and fires, policing the river and river front, the operation of one or more craft 
in the Port to aid vessels or persons in distress, and to aid in extinguishing fires in vessels and 
equipment and their cargo aboard such vessels, or upon wharves and other facilities of the Port. 

NOTE 6 - CONCENTRATION 

Billings for the four largest facility operators represent 56% and 66% of total gross dockage 
revenues for the years ended April 30, 2022 and 2021. 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANOAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

April 30, 2022 and 2021 

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PUN 

Genero/ Information about the Pension Plan 

Plan Description - Substantially all of the Port's employees are required to participate In the 
Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System ("USERS") - a cost-sharing, multiple-employer 
defined benefit pension plan administered by a Board of Trustees and established by Title 11, 
Section 401 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950. LASERS issues a publicly available financial 
report that can be obtained at wvvw.lasersonline.org. The report may also be obtained by writing 
to the Louisiana Employees Retirement System, P.O. Box 4423 3, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-
421 3, or by calling (225) 922-0600. 

Benefits Provided - The age and yea<^ of creditable service required in order for a member to 
retire with full benefits are established by statute and may vary depending on the member's hire 
date, employer, and job classification. The rank and file members hired prior to July 1, 2006, may 
either retire with full benefits at any age upon completing 30 years of creditable service, at age 55 
upon completing 25 years of creditable service and at age 60 upon completing ten years of 
creditable service depending on their plan. Those members hired between July 1. 2006 and June 
30, 2015, may retire at age 60 upon completing five years of creditable service and those hired on 
or after July 1, 2015 may retire at age 62 upon completing five years of creditable service. 

The basic annual retirement benefit for members is equal to 2.5% to 3.5% of average 
compensation multiplied by the number of years of creditable service. Additionally, members may 
choose to retire with 20 years of service at any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit. Average 
compensation Is defined as the member's average annual earned compensation for the highest 36 
consecutive months of employment for members employed prior to July 1, 2006. For members 
hired July 1, 2006 or later, average compensation is based on the member's averse annual earned 
compensation for the highest 60 consecutive months of employment. The maximum annual 
retirement benefit cannot exceed the lesser of 100% of average compensation or a certain 
specified dollar amount of actuarially determined monetary limits, which vary depending upon the 
member's age at retirement. Judges, court officers, and certain elected officials receive an additional 
annual retirement benefit equal to 1.0% of average compensation multiplied by the number of 
years of creditable service In their respective capacity. As an alternative to the basic retirement 
benefits, a member may elect toreceive their retirement throughout their life, with certain benefits 
being paid to their designated beneficiary after their death. 

Generally, active members with ten or more years of credited service who become disabled may 
receive a maximum disability retirement benefit equivalent to the regular retirement formula 
without reduction by reason of age. As fully described in Title I I of the Louisiana Revised Statutes, 
the System allows for the payment of permanent benefit Increases that are funded through 

investment earnings when recommended by the Board of Trustees and approved by the State 
Legislature. 
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PORT Of SOUTH LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANOAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

Apni30, 2022 and 202 f 

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLAN (Conttnued) 

(Seneraf Information about the Pens/on Plan: (continued) 

Contributions - Contribution rates are established annually under LRS 11:101 - II: 104 by the 
Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee (PRSAC), taking into consideration the 
recommendation of LASER'S actuary. Rates are different for each class of members; however, the 
Port's contractually required contribution rate for the year ended April 30, 2022 was 40.1%. 
Employees are required to contribute 7.5% of their annual pay if they were hired before July I, 
2006 and 8.0% if they were hired after July 1, 2006. Contributions to LASERS from the Port were 
$836,723, $998,319, and $1,020,485 for the years ended April 30, 2022, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. 

Pension Lrobrfftres, Pens/on Expense^ and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
/nf7ows of Resources Reioted to Pensions 

At April 30, 2022, the Port reported a liability of $6,115,633 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that 
date. The Port's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Port's April 
30, 2022 contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating 
employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, the Port's proportion was 0.1 1111 %, which 
was a decrease of 0.00486% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020. 

for the year ended April 30, 2022, the Port recognized pension expense of $66,547. At April 30, 
2022, the Port reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions from the following sources; 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Difference between expected and aaual experience 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on pension plan investments 
Changes in assumptions 
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 

$ 6,040 $ 

149,797 
836.723 

.426,189 

992.560 $ 1.426.189 

At April 30, 2022, the Port reported $836,723 as deferred outflows of resources related to 
pensions resulting from the Port's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be 
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended April 30, 2022. Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources ^d deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized In pension expense as follows: 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO HNANQAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

April 30, 2022 and 2021 

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued) 

Pension LiabrVfties, Pension Expense^ and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
/nflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 

Year Ended; 
April 30.2023 $ (91.664) 
April 30, 2024 (219,767) 
April 30, 2025 (324,017) 
April 30. 2026 (634.903) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability In the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

InfTation 2.3% 

Saieiry Increases Member Type Lower Range Upper Range 

Regular 30% 12.8% 
Judges 2.6% 5,1% 
Corrections 3,6% 13.8% 
Hazardous Duty 3.6% 13.8% 
Wildlife 3.6% 13.8% 

Investment Rate of Return 7.40%, Net of Investment Expense 

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Healthy Mortality Table for healthy annuitants with 
mortality Improvement projected using the MP-2018 Mortality Improvement Scale, applied on a 
fully generational basis, and the RP-2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality Tables for disabled annuitants 
with no projection for mortality improvement, as appropriate. 

The actuarial assumptions used In the June 30, 2021 valuation was based on an experience study 
performed in 2018, which was based on the experience of LASERS for the period July I, 2014 
through June 30, 2018. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan Investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return 
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and 
by adding expected inflation and an adjustment for the effect of rebalancing / diversification. Best 
estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class included in the System's target 
asset allocation as of June 30, 2021 are summarized in the following table: 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOU/StANA 
NOTES TO FINANCAL STATEMENTS ~ Continued 

April 30, 2022 and 2021 

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued) 

Actuahaf Assumptions (continued) 

ASSET CLASS 
Cash 
Domestic Equity 
Irtternational Equity 
Domestic Fixed Income 
international Fixed income 
Alternative investments 

Total 

Inflation 
Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 

Target Reo/ 
Aiiocation 

0.00% 
23.00% 
32.00% 
6.00% 

10.00% 
29.00% 

100.00% 

Long-Term 
Expected Rote 
of Return 

-0.29% 
4.09% 
5.12% 
0.49% 
3.94% 
6.93% 
5.8 i% 

2.30% 
7.61% 

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.40%. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that empJoyee contributions 
will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from participating employers 
will be made at the actuarially determined rates approved by the PRSAC taking Into consideration 
the recommendation of lASERS's aauary. Sased on those assumptions, LASERS's fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current 
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Port's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate — The following presents the Port's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 7,40%, as well as what the Port's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be If It were calculated using a discount rate that Is one percentage-point lower 
(6.40%) or one percentage-point higher (8.40%) than the current rate: 

Port's Proportionate Share of the 
Net Pension Liability 

1.0% 
Decrease 
f6.40%^ 

Current 
Discount Rate 

(7.40%^ 

1.0% 
Increase 
f8.40%^ 

$ 8,286,220 $ 6,115,633 $ 4,268,736 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately Issued LASERS finandai report. 

Payables to the Pension Plan - As of April 30, 2022, the Port did not have any payables due to 
LASERS. 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUtS/ANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

April 30, 2022 and 2021 

NOTE 8 - CONTINGENCIES AND UNCERTAINITIES 

The Port Is a party to legal proceedings incidental to Its business. Certcun claims, suits and 
complaints arising in the ordinary course of business have been filed or are pending against the 
Port. Future actions may occur that would affect the Port's liability. 

NOTE 9 - CONDUIT DEBT 

From time to time, the Port has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide assistance for private-
sector entities for Port-related projects that are deemed to be in the public interest. The Port is 
not obligated for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported in the 
accompanying financial statements. 

In 1997, the Port Issued port facility revenue bonds, due January I, 2027, for the purpose of 
financing the cost of acquiring, constructing and installing a project, consisting of certain dock, wharf 
and related storage facilities, in the amount of $22,000,000 on behalf of Holcim, Inc. (the 
Company), The Company Is responsible for the payment of these bonds which are secured by an 
irrevocable letter of credit. 

In 2008, the Port issued port facility revenue bonds, due December 1, 2038, for the purpose of 
financing the cost of design, development, acquisition, construction, mstallatlon and equipping of a 
portion of docks and wharves and related facilities, in the amount of $40,000,000 on behalf of Plains 
All American Pipeline, L.P. (the Company). The Company is responsible for the payment of these 
bonds which are secured by the holder and owner through the Indenture. 

NOTE 10 - POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS 

Plan Description 

The Port provides post-employment health care and life insurance benefits for substantially all 
employees if they reach normal retirement age while working for the Port. The Port's employees 
may participate in the State of Louisiana's Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (OPEB Plan), an 
agent multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB Plan (for fiscal year 2022) that provides medical and 
life insurance to eligible active employees, retirees and their beneficiaries. The State administers 
the Plan through the Office of Group Benefits (OGB). LRS 42:801- 883 eissigns the authority to 
establish and amend benefit provisions of the Plan. 

The OGB does not Issue a publicly available financial report of the OPEB Plan; however, It Is 
included In the State of Louisiana Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). A copy of the 
ACFR may be obtained on the Office of Statewide Reporting and Accounting Policy's website at 
www.dQa.]oulsiana.gov/osrap. 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Contfnued 

April 30, 2022 and 2021 

NOTE 10 - POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS 
(Continued) 

Funding Policy 

The contribution requirements of plan members and the Port are established and may be amended 
by LRS 42:801- 883. Employees do not contribute to their postemployment benefits cost until 
they become retirees and begin receiving those benefits. The retirees contribute to the cost of 
retiree healthcare based on a service schedule. Contribution amounts vary depending on what 
healthcare provider is selected from the plan and if the member has Medicare coverage. 

Emp/oyees Covered by Bene/h Terms 

At July 1, 2021, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 20 
Active plan members 52 

72 

Totai OP£B LiabiUty 

The Port's total OPEB liability of $7,93 1,254 was measured as of July 1, 2021 and was determined 
by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs 

The total OPEB liability In the July 1, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods Included In the measurement, unless 
otherwise specified: 

inflation 2.80% 
Salary increases Consistent with the pension valuation assumptions 
Discount rate 2.66%, based on thejune 30, 2021 S&P 20-year municipal bond 

rate index 
Healthcare cost trend rates Post-Medicare: 5.25% for 2020, thereafter decreasing .25% per 

year through 2024, to an ultimate rate of 4.5% for 2024 and later 
years 
Pre-Medicare: 6.75% grading down by .25% each year to an 
ultimate rate of 4.5% in 2029 

Retiree's share of benefit-related costs 
Baseline per capital costs (PCCs) were updated to reflect 2020 
claims and enrollment and retiree contributions were updated 
based on 2021 premiums. 

Actual cost method Entry Age Normal, level percentage of pay 
Estimated remaining service lives 4.50 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FfNANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

April 30. 2022 and 2021 

NOTE 10- POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs (continued) 

For healthy lives the RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy Annuitant Table, adjusted by 1.280 for males and 
RP-2014 White Collar Healthy Annuitant Table, adjusted by 1.417 for females, projected from 2014 
on a fully generational basis by Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2018 was used. For existing 
disabled lives, the RP-2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table, adjusted by 1.009 for males and 1.043 
for females, not projected with mortality improvement was used. 

The actuarial assumptions used by the pension plans covering the same participants were used for 
the retirement, termination, disability, and salary scale assumptions. 

Changes fn the TotaJ OPES Liability 

Balance at April 30,2021 $ 7,323,606 
Changes for the year: 

Service cost 213,973 
Interest 198,780 
Differences between expected and actual experience (215,280) 
Changes in assumptions and other Inputs 540,3 13 
Benefit payments (130.138) 

Net changes 607.648 

Balance at April 30, 2022 $ 7.931.254 

Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change fn the discount rate from 2.79% in 2020, the 
prior valuation, to 2.66% In 2021, the current valuation. 

SensitjVfty of the Tota/ OPEB Liability to Changes in the D/scount Rate 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Port, as well as what the Port's total OPEB 
llability would be if It were calculated using a discount rate that Is I-percentage-point lower (1.66%) 
or I-percentage-point higher (3.66%) than the current discount rate: 

Current 
1.0% Decrease Discount Rate 1.0% Increase 

(1.66%) (2.66%) (3.66%) 
Total OPEB liability $9,309,052 $7,931.254 $6,838,271 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOU/S/ANA 
NOTES TO FfNANCAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

April 30. 2022 and 2021 

NOTE 10 - POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS (Continued) 

Sensftrv^ of the Totoi OP£B Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rotes 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Port, as well as what the Port's total OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are I -percentage-point 
lower (5.75% decreasing to 3.5%) or I -percentage-point higher (7.75% decreasing to 5.5%) than 
the current healthcare cost trend races: 

Total OPEB liability 

1.0% Decrease 
(5.75% 

decreasing to 
3.5%) 

$6,827,326 

Healthcare Cost 
Trend Rates 

(6.75% decreasing 
to 4.5%) 

$7,931,254 

1.0% Increase 
(7.75% 

decreasing to 
5.5%) 

$9,335,995 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Re/oted to OPEB 

For the year ended April 30, 2022, the Port recognized an OPEB benefit of $416,487. At April 30, 
2022, the Port reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to OPEB from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions and other Inputs 
Total 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

$ 51,950 
448.975 

1 500.925 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

$ 489.475 
522.744 

a I.0I2.2I9 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Years Ending: 
April 30. 2023 
April 30. 2024 
April 30, 2025 
April 30. 2026 

$ (485,348) 
(168,740) 

88,623 
54,172 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

April 30. 2022 and 2021 

NOTE 11 - ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH AIRPORT 

The Port has all rights and title to the St. John the Baptist Parish Airport. For the years ended April 30, 
2022 and 2021, the Port incurred losses related to the operations of the Airport in the amount of 
$391,850 and $288,606, respectively. The Port received ce^ital contributions by the State of Louisiana 
and grant funding from the Federal Aviation Administration totaling $ 127,120 and $269,95 i for the 
years ended April 30, 2022 and 202 i, respectively. 

NOTE 12 - COMMISSIONERS COMPENSATiON 

In accordance with R.S. 34:2472 (D), the commissioners of the Port of South Louisiana receive per 
diem payments for attendance at officially called meetings or any subcommittee meetings of the board 
of commissioners. For the year ended April 30. 2022, the following per diem payments were made to 
the commissioners: 

Commissioner: 
Per Diem 
Payments 

D. Paul Robichaux $ 4,058 
Louis Joseph 3,441 
Judy B. Songy 4,058 
Katie Kiibert 1,262 

P. Joey Murray, III 3,698 
Robbie LeBlanc 3,479 
Ryan Burks 3,698 
Stanley Bazile 3,736 
Whitney Hickerson 4,399 

$ 3f.829 

NOTE 13-COMMITMENTS 

Tlie Port enters into various contracts In the normal course of its operations. No material commitments 
existed at April 30, 2022. 

NOTE 14-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Port has evaluated subsequent events through the date the financial statements were available to 
be issued, which corresponds with the date of the independent auditors' report. 

Subsequent to year end, the Port was awarded a grant of approximately $ 1 million for cyber security 
upgrades to their computer system from the Department of Homeland Security Federal Emergency 
Management Agency. 

No other material subsequent events have occurred since April 30, 2022, that require recognition or 
disclosure in the financial statements. 
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PORT Of SOUTH LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENS/ON LIABIUTY 

For the Years Ended Apr//JO. 2022. 202/. 2020. 20/9, 20/5. 20/7. 20/6, and 20/5 

Employer's 
Employer's Proportionate 
Proportion Share of the Net Plan Fiduciary 
Share of the Employer's Employer's Pension Liability Net Position as 
Net Pension Proportfonate Share Covered- (Asset) as a % of Its a % of the 

Fiscal LiablHty of the Net Pension Employee Covered Employee Total Pension 
Year (Asset) Ll^ility (Asset) Payroll Payroll Liability 

04/30/22 0.111110% $ 6. II 5,633 $ 3.410,608 179.3% 72.8% 
04/30/21 0.115970% $ 9,591,328 $ 3,849,639 249,1% 58.0% 
04/30/20 0.126700% $ 9.179,378 $ 3,796,589 241,8% 62,9% 
04/30/19 0,149450% $ 10,192.040 $ 3.838.283 265.5% 54.3% 
04/30/18 0.153300% $ 10,790,808 $ 3,121.510 345.7% 62.5% 
04/30/17 0.rS58f0% $ 12,234,904 $ 2,944,000 415.6% 57.7% 
04/30/16 0.141350% $ 9,613,662 $ 3,024,970 317.8% 62.7% 
04/30/15 0.141410% $ 0,842,276 $ 3,088.800 286.3% 65.0% 

The schedule is intended to report Information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they 
become available. The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year. 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES /N THE TOTAL OPEB L/A6/U7T AND 

RELATED RATfOS AND NOTE TO THE SCHEDULE 
For the Years Ended April 30, 20/9 through 2022 

2019 2020 2021 2022 
Total OPEB Liability 

Service cost $ 304,612 $ 291,855 $ 215,699 $ 213,973 
Interest 284,864 247,726 197,164 198,780 
Differences between expeaed and aaual 
experience (872,453) (463,030) 89,058 (215,280) 
Changes in assumptions and other inputs (329,991) (IJ 12,514) 36,390 540,313 
Benefit payments (183.864) (137.283) (130,707) (130,138) 
Net change in total OPEB liability (796.832) (M 73,246) 407,604 607,648 
Total OPEB liability - b^inning 8,886,080 8,089,248 6,916,002 7.323.606 

Total OPEB liability-ending $ 8.089,248 $ 6,916,002 $ 7,323,606 $ 7,931,254 

Covered-employee payroll $ 3,838,283 $ 3,796,589 $ 3,849,639 $ 3,410,608 
Net OPES liability as a percentage of 

covered-employee payroll 210.8% 182.2% 190.2% 232.5% 

This schedule is intended to show information for j 0 years. Additional years will be displayed as 
they become available. 

The actuarial valuation date differs from the financial reporting date. The actuarial valuations 
are as of July 1, 2021. An actuarial valuation Is only required biennially. 

Note to the Schedule: 

Changes in assumptions and other Inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 2.98% in 
2018 to 2.79% in 2019 and to 2.66% in 2020 and 2021. 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUISfANA 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYERS PENS/ON CONTRIBUnONS 

For the Years Ended Apr//30,1011, 2021, 2020. 20/9, 2013, 20/7. 20/6, and 20/5 

Fiscal 
Year 

Contractually 
Required 

Contribution 

Contributions In 
Relation to 

Contractually 
Required 

Contribution 

Contribution 
(Deficiency) 

Excess 

Employer's 
Covered-

Employee Payroll 

Contribution as a 
Percentage of 

Covered -Em p 1 oyee 
Payroll 

04/30/22 $ 1.367.654 $ 836.723 $ (530,931) $ 3,410.608 24.53% 
04/30/21 $ 1.566,803 $ 998,319 $ (568,484) $ 3.849,639 25.93% 
04/30/20 $ 1,438.907 $ 1,020,485 $ (418,422) $ 3,796,589 26.88% 
04/30/19 $ 1,454,709 $ 1,039.840 $ (414,869) $ 3.838.283 27.09% 
04/30/1B $ 1,035,697 $ 1,062,841 $ 27,144 $ 3.J2J.5I0 34.05% 
04/30/17 $ 1,053.952 $ 1.066,651 $ 12,699 $ 2,944,000 36.23% 
04/30/16 $ 1,125,289 $ 1,025,886 $ (99.403) $ 3,024,970 33.91% 
04/30/15 $ 1,142,856 $ 950,312 $ (192,544) $ 3,088,800 30.77% 

The schedute is Intended to report information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they 
become available. The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year. 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF COMP£NSAr/ON, BENEFITS AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD 

For the Yeor Ended April 30. 2022 

Agency Head: Paul Aucoin, Executive Director 
(May 1,202! - December 3 1, 2021) 

Salary $ 174,642 
Car allowance 8,500 
Annual leave upon retirement 33,585 
Benefits - insurance 7,471 
Deferred compensation 5,768 
Cell phone 363 
Lodging 99 
Airfare 473 
Transportation 337 
Registration / meeting fees 420 

Total S 23L658 

Agency Head: Paul Matthews, Executive Director 
Oanuary 15, 2022-April 30, 2022) 

Salary $ 56,248 
Car allowance 3,500 
Benefits - insurance 3,724 
Deferred compensation 1,212 
Cell phone 463 
Lodging 1,691 
Airfare 2,977 
Parking 74 
T ransportation 1,276 
Meal allowance 1,110 
Registration / meeting fees 4.674 

Total $ 76.949 
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KL KUSHNER 
LAGRAIZE, LLC 
CPAs & CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDtT/NG STANDARDS 

To the Board of Commissioners 
Port of South Louisiana 

We have audited, In accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
Port of South Louisiana (the Port), as of and for the year ended April 30, 2022, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Port's basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated October 11, 2022. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Port's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate In the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port's 
Internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port's 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
man^ement or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis, A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal control, such that there Is a reasonable 
possibility that a materia] misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internaJ controJ that Is less severe than a material wetness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of Internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to Identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Port's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement^ we performed tests of its compiiance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed one instance of noncompliance or other matters that Is 
required to be reported under Government Audlt/ng Standards and which Is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2022-00 i. 

Port of South Louisiana's Response to Findings 

Government Audit/ng Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Port's 
response to the finding identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. The Port's response was not subjected to the other auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion 
on the response. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of Internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control or on compiiance. This report Is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compiiance. Accordingly, this communication Is not suitable for any other purpose. Under 
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public 
document. 

Metairie, Louisiana 
October n. 2022 



PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
SCH£DUl£ OF £XP£ND/7UR£S OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Year Ended Apn'f 30, 2022 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor Program 
Title 

United States Department of Transportation, 
Federal Aviation Administration 

Direct Programs: 

Airport Improvement Program 
COVjD-19 - Airport improvement 

Program - ACRGP 

United States Department of Homeland Security 

Passed through the Lower Mississippi River 
Port Wide Strategic Security Council: 

FY 2017 Port Security Grant Program 

FY 20 i 8 Port Security Grant Program 

FY 2019 Port Security Grant Progr^ 

FY 2020 Port Security Grant Program 

Assistance 
Listing 
Number 

20.106 

Grant 
Award 
Number 

20.106 3-22-0064-021-2021 

3-22-0064-023-2022 

97.056 EMW-2017-PU-OOO18 

97.056 EMW-20i8-PU-00l 16 

97.056 EMW-20i 9-PU-00026 

97.056 EMW-2020-PU-00077 

Expenditures 

$ 30.780 

32.000 
62,780 

52,632 

1,950 

21,223 

281.350 
357,155 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards £ 419.935 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2022 

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND BASIS OF 
PRESENTATION 

The accompanying Schedo/e of Expend/tures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of 
the Port of South Louisiana and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The 
information in this schedule Is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code 
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Adm/n/strotive Requ/rements, Cost Pr/ncfp/es, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ 
from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. 

NOTE 2 - DE MINIMIS COST RATE 

The Port did not elect to use the 10% de minimis cost rate as covered by Section 200.414 of the 
Uniform Guidance. 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
SCH£DUf.H OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Year Ended April 30. 2022 

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

The type of report Issued on the basic financial statements: unmodified. 

a. Significant deficiencies in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the financial 
statements: none reported; Material weaknesses: none. 

b. Noncompliance which is material to the financial statements: none. 

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

2022-001 

Criteria: 

Management is responsible for developing safeguards to prevent the misappropriation of assets. 

Condition: 

During the year ended April 30. 2022, the Port was the victim of a cyber-attack. As a result of this 
attack, approximately $420,319 was misappropriated from the Port. The Port was able to recover 
$250,000 through insurance providers, and Is still In the process of filing proofs ofloss for additional 
Insurance reimbursement for the loss. As required by law, the Port Informed the St. John the 
Baptist Parish District Attorney's office and applicable law enforcement, including the Federal 
Bureau of Investigation (FBI), 

Cause: 

With new advanced computer technologies come new unprecedented threats. As a result, a 
cyber-attack occurred at the Port during the year ended April 30, 2022. 

Effect: 

The cyber-attack resulted in the misappropriation of cash. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that management Implement additional safeguards, such as third-paty 
verification for electronic payment requests, and provide on-going training to staff related to cyber 
security. 

Management's Response: 

Management concurred with the recommendation. See management's corrective action plan. 
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PORT OF SOUTH LOUISIANA 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2022 

SECTION I "FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

None 

SECTION II - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATED TO FEDERAL AWARDS 

None 
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CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT- OTHER MATTERS 

April 30, 2022 

Louisiana State Legislative Auditor 

Port of South Louisiana respectfully submits to you the following corrective action plan for the Financial 
Statement - Other Matters - for the year ended April 30, 2022. 

Kushner LaGraize, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
3330 W Esplanade Ave - Suite 100 
Metalrie, LA 70002 

Audit period: May 01, 2021-April SO, 2022 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT-OTHER MATTERS 

2022-001 

Condition: 
During the year ended April, 30,2022, the Port was the victim of a cyber-attack. As a result of this attack, 
approximately $420,319 was misappropriated from the Port. The Port was able to recover $250,000 
through insurance providers, and is still in the process of filing proofs of loss for additional insurance 
reimbursement for the loss. As required by law, the Port informed the St. John the Baptist Parish District 
Attorney's Office and applicable law enforcement, including the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI). 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that management implement additional safeguards, such as third-party verification for 
electronic payment request, and provide on-going training to staff related to cyber security. 

Management's Response: 

The Port concurs with the recommendation suggested by our auditors. The Port has implemented a third-
party verification process which includes verifying Information through a phone call with a representative 
of the requesting vendor. In addition, the Port is providing training to the staff to protect against future 
cyber-attacks. 

P.O. Box AE Reserve, Louisiana 70084 155 West 10th Street Reserve, Louisiana 70084 855,SLA,PORT 985.652,9278 www,ports!.com 



KL KUSHNER 
LAGRAIZE, LLC 
CPAs & CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To Mr. Paul Matthews and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and comptlance (C/C) 
areas fdenttfied in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
(SAUPs) for the fiscal period May I, 2021 through April 30, 2022. The Port of South Louisiana's 
management Is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

The Port of South Louisiana (the Port) has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures 
performed are appropriate to meet the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform 
specified procedures on the C/C areas identified in LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period May 1, 2021 
through April 30, 2022. Additionally, LLA has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures 
performed are appropriate for its purposes. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. 
The procedures performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this report and 
may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for 
determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

VVntten Poficies and Procedures 

I. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe whether they 
address each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and the 
entity's operations: 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

We obtained the entity's written poficies and procedures on budgeting ond noted no 
exceptions. 

b) Purchasing, including (I) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase 
orders; (4) controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) documentation 
required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

We obtained the entity's written poficies and procedures on purchasing and noted no 
exceptions. 
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c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

We obtained the entity's written policies and procedures on dfsbursen7ents and noted no 
exceptions. 

d) Recerpts/Co/iectrons, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, 
policies and procedures should include management's actions to determine the 
completeness of ail collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g., 
periodic confirmation vdth outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff 
procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture 
monies confirmation). 

We obtained tbe entity's written policies and procedures on rece/pts/co/iect/ons and noted no 
exceptions, 

e) Poyroff/Personne/, including (I) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, Including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process for 
empioyee(s) rate of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

We obtained the entity's written policies and procedures on poyroii/personnei ond ̂ ^o^ed no 
exceptions. 

f) Contracting, including (i) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms 
and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

We obtained the entity's written policies and procedures on contracting and noted no 
exceptions. 

g) Credit Cords (and debit cords, foei cords, P-Cords, if applicable)^ including (I) how 
cards are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, 
(4) required approvers of statements, and (S) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the 
reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

We obtained the entity's written policies and procedures on credit cards and noted no 
exceptions. 

h) Trove/ ond Expense Reimbursement, including (I) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required 
approvers. 

We obtained the entity's written po/icies and procedures on trove/ and expense 
reimbursement and noted no exceptions. 



i) Ethtcs, including (I) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 42:1 M I -
112 [, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor 
possible ethics violations, and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained to 
demonstrate that ail employees and officials were notified of any changes to the entity's 
ethics policy. 

We obtained the entity's written policies and procedures covering ethics ond noted the 
po/icies addressed all criteria noted above. 

j) Debt Service, Including (1) debt Issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA 
reporting requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

We obtoined the entity's written po/icies and procedures on debt service and noted no 
exceptions. 

k) fnfbrmation Tecbnoiogy Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, Including (I) 
Identification of critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a 
separate physic^ location isolated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that 
backups can be restored, (4) use of antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application 
of all available system and software patches/updates, and (6) jdentification of personnel, 
processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

We obtained the entity's written poiicies ond procedures on informotion technology disaster 
recovery/business continuity and noted no exceptions. 

I) Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency 
responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

We obtoined Che entity's written policies and procedures on sexuo/ horossment ond noted no 
exceptions. 

Board or Finance Committee 

2. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the 
board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document In effect during the fiscal 
period, ^d: 

a) Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a 
frequency in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other 
equivalent document. 

The Port's Commission met monthly, with a quorum present at each meeting, without 
exception. 



b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe whether the 
minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general 
fund, quarterly budget-to-actual, at a minimum, on proprietary funds, and semi-annual 
budget- to-actual, at a minimum, on all special revenue funds. 

Noted the m/nutes referenced or included the budget-to-actuai comporisons mentioned, 
mthout except/on. 

c) For governmental entitles, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned 
fund balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unassigned fund 
balance In the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting 
during the fiscal period referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative 
unassigned fund balance in the general fund. 

N/A - no negative ending unossigned fund balance in the prior year report. 

Bank Beco/ic/V/atrons 

3. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to Identify the 
entity's main operating account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly 
select 4 additional accounts (or all accounts if Jess than 5). Randomly select one month from 
the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for 
each selected account, and observe that: 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the 
related statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged); 

Bank reconci/iat/ons included evidence that they were prepored vv/th/n 2 months of the 

sCotement c/os/ng dote, without except/on. 

b) Bank reconciliations Include evidence that a member of management/board member who 
does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation 
(e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); and 

Noted proper segregotjon of duties for the responsibiiities listed above, without exception. 

c) Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that have 
been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

N/A - no outstond/ng items greater than 12 months identified. 



Co//ection$ fexc/urffng efectronfe funds trons^rsj 

4, Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money 
orders (cash) are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. 
Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

Obc<3/ned //sf/ng of deposit sites for the fiscal period and management's representat/on that the 
fisting is comp/ete, without except/on, 

5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each 
deposit site (i.e., 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies 

procedures relating to employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire 
of employees about thefr job duties) at each collection location, and observe that job duties 
are properly segregated at each collection location such that: 

a) Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

Noted proper segregot/on of duties for the responsibilities listed above, without exception. 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash Is not responsible for preparing/making bank 
deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection 
documentation (e.g., pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit. 

Noted proper segregation of duties for the responsihi/it/es iisted above, without exception. 

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection 
entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/offlciaJ is 
responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

Noted proper segregot/on of duties for the respons/bi/ities fisted above, without except/on. 

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or 
subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions, are not responsible 
for collecting cash, unless another employee/official verifies the reconciliation. 

Noted proper segregotiofj of duties for the responsibi/ities listed above, without exception, 

6. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all 
employees who have access to cash. Observe the bond or insurance policy for theft was 
enforced during the fiscal period. 

Observed insurance policy covering all applicable employees, without except/on. 



7. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts seleaed for procedure #3 
under "Bank Reconciliations" above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits 
were made on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits 
are made on the same day). Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and: 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

N/A - Due to the small volume of cash co//ect/ons received, the Port does not ut//tze a system 
of sequentio/Zy pre-numbered receipts for their co//ect/ons. 

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

for all deposits examined, traced each to the deposit slip, without exception. 

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

for all deposits examined, troced eoch to the bank statement, without exception. 

d) Observe the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the colEection location 
(within one week if the depository Is more than 10 miles from the collection location or 
the deposit is less than $ 100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer). 

for a/I deposits exomined, noted that all were made within the proper time ronge, without 
exception. 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

for all deposits examined, traced each from the bank statements to recording in the genera/ 
ledger, without exception, 

Non-Payroll Disbursements fexcfuding card purchoses/poyments, trove/ reimbursements, 
and petty cash purchases) 

8. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing Is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all Eocatlons if less 
than 5). 

Obtained listing of locations that process payments for the fiscoi period and manogement's 
representation that the listing is complete, without exception. 



9, For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with 
non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures 
relating to employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire 
of employees about their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such 
that: 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, 
and placing an order/making the purchase. 

Noted proper segregation of duties for the responsiPi/it/es //sted above, without exception. 

b) At least two employees are Involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

Noted proper segregot/on of duties for the responsihi/it/es iisted above, without exception. 
c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying 

vendor files, unless another employee Is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to 
vendor files. 

Noted proper segregot/on of duties for the responsihi/ities listed above, without exception. 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the 
signed checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments^ 

Noted proper segregoc/orj of duties for the responsibilities listed above, without exception. 

10. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement 
transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's 
representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each 
location, obtain supporting documentation for each transaction, and: 

a) Observe whether the disbursement matched the related original itemized invoice and 
supporting documentation indicates deliverables Included on the invoice were received by 
the entity. 

Exommed 5 disbursements noting each matched the originol invoice, without exception. 

b) Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, 
electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

Noted proper segregation of duties for each of the disbursements exomined, without exception. 



Credit Cords/Debit Cards/Fuet Cerds/P-Cards 

11. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and 
P-cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons 
who maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing 
is complete. 

Obtained complete listing of all active credit cards for the fiscal period ond rnonogement's 
representotion that the listing is complete, without except/on. 

12. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) 
that were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined 
statement for each card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), 
obtain supporting documentation, and: 

a) Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement 
and supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, 
exception reports for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, In writing 
(or electronically approved), by someone other than the authorized card holder. 

Noted each statement examined showed evidence of review and approval by cjppropriote 
personne/, tvithout exception. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

Noted no finance charges or late fees assessed on the statements examined. 

13. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under # 12 ^ove, excluding 
fuel cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each 
statement, and obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (I.e., each card should 
have 10 transactions subject to testing). For each transaction, observe it is supported by (I) 
an original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written 
documentation of the business/public purpose, and (3) documentation of the Individuals 
participating in meals (for meal charges only). For missing receipts, the practitioner should 
describe the nature of the transaction and note whether management had a compensating 
control to address missing receipts, such as a "missing receipt statement" that Is subject to 
Increased scrutiny. 

For all transaction examined, noted each was supported by the proper documentot/on os noted 
above, without exception, 



Travel and Travel-Re/ated Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

14. Obtain from management a Eisting of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements 
during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is 
complete. Randomly select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement 
forms/prepaid expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the 
supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected: 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, observe the approved reimbursement rate is no more than 
those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services 
Administration fwww.gsa.govL 

We reviewed the trove/ reimbursements se/ected noting that the reimbursements were mode 
in occordonce with their po/icies ond procedures which is to follow the State ofLouisiono 7rove/ 
Guide. 

b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe the reimbursement is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that Identifies precisely what was purchased. 

Noted afl actual cost reimbursements were supported by an original itemized receipt, without 
exception. 

c) Observe each reimbursement Is supported by documentation of the business/public 
purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those 
Individuals participating) and other documentation required by written policy (procedure 
#lh). 

Noted each reimbursement wos supported by proper documentation, without exception. 

d) Observe each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other 
than the person receiving reimbursement. 

Noted eoch reimbursement examined showed evidence of review and approvai by appropriate 
personne/, without except/on. 

Contracts 

15. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contrarts for professional services, 
materials and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during 
the fiscal period. Alternately, the practitioner moy use an equivalent se/ec£ion source, such os on 
active vendor //s£. Obtain management's representation that the fisting ts complete. Randomly 
select 5 contracts (or all contracts If less than S) from the listing, excluding the practitioner's 
contract, and: 



a) Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law 
(e.g., solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law. 

Examined 5 contracts noting each was properly bid in occordonce with the Louisiano Public Bid 
Law. without except/on. 

b) Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by 
policy or law (e.g., Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

AH contracts were approved by the Board of Commissioners, without exception. 

c) If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe the original contract terms 
provided for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with 
the contract terms (e.g., if approval is required for any amendment, was approval 
documented). 

For ony controcts/ogreements that were amended, revietved original agreement noting 
omendment vvos allowable, without exception. 

d) Randomly selea one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
supporting Invoice, agree the Invoice to the contract terms, and observe the invoice and 
related payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

Examined one poyment for each contract tested noting all were in accordance with the contract, 
without exception. 

Payrott and Personnef 

16. Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or officials, obtain 
related paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates 
in the personnel files. 

OPtoined complete //sting of alt employees and officials empioyed during the fiscal period end 
management's representot/on that the listing is complete, without exception. 

17. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials 
selected under #16 above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay 
period, and: 

a) Observe all selected employees or officials documented their daily attendance and leave 
(e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory). 

Noted eoch emp/oyee tested documented their daily attendance and leave, without exception. 



b) Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected 
employees or officials. 

Noted £3// attendance and leave taken wds approved by the employees' supervisor, without 
exception. 

c) Observe any leave accrued or taken during the pay period Is reflected in the entity's 
cumulative leave records. 

Noted all leave accrued or taken was properly reflected m the Port's cumulative records, without 
exception. 

d) Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agree to the authorized salary/pay rate 
found within the personnel file, 

Noted outhorfzed salary/pay rate for each mdividual tested agreed to their personnel fl/e, 
without except/on. 

18. Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during the 
fiscal period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two 
employees or officials, obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in 
management's termination payment calculations and the entity's policy on termination 
payments. Agree the hours to the employee or officials' cumulative leave records, agree the 
pay rates to the employee or officials' authorized pay rates In the employee or officials' 
personnel files, and agree the termination payment to entity poltcy. 

£xam/ned 2 emp/oyees/o/flc/o/s who received termination payments during the period, noting eoch 
wos in accordance with the Port's policies, agreed to the cumulative leave records, and was ogreed 
to the empioyees' authorized safary/pay rate, without exception. 

19. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-party 
payroll related amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance 
premiums, garnishments, workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any 
associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines. 

Per d/scussion with manogement, ail employer and employee portions of third-party payroll reloted 
omounts have been properly paid and forms filed by the required deadline. 

Ethics 

20. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under "Payroll and 
Personnel" above' obtain ethics documentation from management, and: 

a. Observe whetherthe documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one 
hour of ethics training during the fiscal period. 



Examined 5 employees noting each completed the required ethics training during the period, 
without exception, 

b. Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates each employee 
and official were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period, 
as applicable. 

Per monagement, there were no chonges to the Port's ethfcs policies during the pen'od. 

Debt Service 

21. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes and other debt Instruments Issued during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all debt Instruments on the 
listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe State Bond Commission approval was 
obtained for each debt instrument issued. 

N/A - the Port issued no debt during the period, 

22. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly selea one bond/note, Inspect debt 
covenants, obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree 
actual reserve balances and payments to those required by debt covenants (including 
contingency funds, short-lived asset funds, or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

We obtained a listing of bonds outstanding at the end of the fiscal year and monogement's 
representation that the listing is complete, without exception. We selected one bond and noted 
no exceptions during our testing. 

Fraud Notrce 

23. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the 
listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the 
misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish In which 
the entity Is domiciled. 

Ofata/»?ed Wsting, noting one instonce of m/soppropriaCion of pub//c funds, and morjogement's 
representot/on that the l/stirig was complete. Obtained supporting documentation on 
misappropriation and noted the Port notified the legts/ative auditor as well as law enforcement. 

24. Observe the entity has posted, on Its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 
24:523.1 concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

Observed required notice on the Port's website ond premises, without exception. 



/nformatlon Technology Drsdster Recovery/Susmess Continuity 

25. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and report 
"We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management." 

a) Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that It has backed up its 
critical data (if no written documentation, Inquire of personnel responsible for backing 
up critical data) and observe that such backup occurred within the past week. If 
backups are stored on a physical medium (e.g., tapes, CDs), observe evidence that 
backups are encrypted before being transported. 

Obtained and observed backup documentol/on fisted above, noting no exceptions. 

b) Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that It has tested/verified 
that its backups can be restored (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel 
responsible for testing/verifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the 
test/verification was successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

Obtained and examined backup documentation //sted obove, noting no exceptions. 

c) Obtain a listing of the entity's computers currently in use and their related focations, 
and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 
computers and observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers 
have current and active antivirus software and that the operating system and 
accounting system software in use are currently supported by the vendor. 

Observed 5 computers noting eacb had the requirements noted above, v/ithout exception. 

Sexua/ Harassment 

26. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under "Payroll and 
Personnel" above, obtain sexual harassment training documentation from management, and 
observe the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour 
of sexual harassment training during the calendar year. 

Examined 5 employees noting eoch comp/eted tbe required sexua/ harossment training during 
the period, without exception. 

27. Observe the entity has posted Its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on Its 
website (or in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity does not have a 
website). 

Observed the sexuo/ harassment policy and complaint procedure posted on the Port's website, 
without exception. 



28. Obtain the entity's annual sexuai harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that 
the report was dated on or before February I, and observe it includes the applicable 
requirements of R.S. 42:344: 

a) Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the 
training requirements: 

b) Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency: 
c) Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred; 
d) Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline 

or corrective action: and 
e) Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

Obtained and examined the Port's annuo/ sexual harassment report for the period noting 
all the information fisted obove is included, without exception, and the report was doted on 
or before February I, 2022. 

We were engaged by the Port to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted 
our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Aud/t/ng Standords. We were 
not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which 
would be the expression of an opinion or conclusiont respectively, on those C/C areas identified in 
the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed 
additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been 
reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the Port and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures 
engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or 

compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised 
Statute 24:513, this report Is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

Metairie, Louisiana 
October 11, 2022 


